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Joun M. R.PaTtersoN
Doxain G. ALEXANDER
DEPUTY ATTORNEYS GENERAL

ATTORNEY GENERAL

STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTI\IIL"].‘ OF TIIE f\,\'l‘TORNEY GENERAL
AUGUsTA, MAINE 01333

November 16, 1976

Arthur Chapman, Jr., Chairman

Board of Cumberland County Commissioners
142 Federal Street

Portland, Maine 04111

Re: Cumberland County Jail Budget.

Dear Mr. Chapman:

This letter responds to your correspondence of October 27,
1976, concerning an anticipated overdraft in the Cumberland
County Jail Budget for the year 1976. You have asked whether
the County Commissioners may transfer other uncomitted county
funds to the jail account in order to operate the county jail
for the remainder of 1976 and prevent the anticipated overdraft.

This office has previously taken the position that since the
District Attorney for each prosecutorial district is required by
statute to represent counties within his district (30 M.R.S.A.

§ 501), questions such as those which you have posed should be
initially addressed to the appropriate district attorney. How-
ever, the question which you have raiscd is one which has been
raised in the past by members of the Legislature with regard to
other counties, and our previous answers nay be helpful to you.
Therefore, I am enclosing herewith copies of a letter dated
November 26, 1975, addressed to Senator Philip C. Jackson and a
letter dated September 25, 1975, addressed to Representative
Leighton Cooney. The opinions of this office expressed in those
letters appear to answer your question.

Please feel free to contact Deputy Attorney Gencral Donald
G. Alexander or Assistant Attorney General Kirk Studstrup, both
of whom are aware of your situation, if you have questions con-
cerning the enclosed opinions. However, I suggest that you con-
tact District Attorney Henry Berry for legal advice concerning
your particular situation.

Sincerely,.

JOSEPH E. BRENNAN
Attorney General
JEB/ec
cc: Henry Berry, D.A.
robert Redmand, Audit
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November 26, 1975

Honorable Fhilip C. Jackson
State Senator

Vain Street

Hacrison, lMaina 04040

+
i

: .
Re: Kennebhec County Financial Situation
Dear Senntor Jackson:

Your letter of November 13, 1975, describad a financial
situation in Kennebec County and requested our opinion on the
legality of one possible solution. 8riefly stated, the County
has exhaustad the authorized funding in the departmental alloca-
tion for the Jail, also known &s "support of prisecners," The
county must f£ind some other source of funds for this purpose and
to meet other obligations. There is an anticipated surplus of
$125,000 in the dspartmental allocation for the Superior Court,
also known as the "court account,” and you ask:

e

"lfay the surplus funds in the court account
be legally used for support of prisoners
and other related expsnses?”

The answer to your question is negative., The situation you
describe calls for overspending an individual line item in the
legislatively approved county budget, There are only two ways the
County Comnissioners may take such action without legislative approval,
as described in our opinion of April 30, 1975, addressed to you and
Representative Dam. The Commissioners may use the contingent account
Toc this pucpose oc they may, with certain limitations, make intra-
departmental transfers of funds £rom one specific line item to
another, 30 M.R.S.A. § 252, ileither alternative could ba used
at this time to meke available funds firom the Superioc Court account
Tor “"support of prisoners® or other purposes which are not directly
related in a budget sense to the court,



Honnrable rhilip C. Jackson
MNovaomber 26, 1975
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You indicated that the contingent account for Kennebec
County has been exhausted. Therefore, this option would be viable
only if the account could ba restored in some manner, The contingent
account is restored at the end of each fiscal year from surplus funds,
i.e. unencunbered ifunds, unexpended balances, and actual revenue in
excass of estimates., 30 M.R.S.A. §§ 252 and 408. Since the forecast
surplus in the Superior Court account will not become zctual surplus
until the end of the fiscal periocd, restoration of the contingent
rcount with these funds is not possible at this time. However,
action 252 also provides that "Such funds as are available to each

Lounuy may be used for [the contingent account], " and funds made
available from another source, such as the State Contingent Account
(5 M.R.S.A. § 1507), could be usad to augment the contingent account.
The latter suggestion is bayond the scopa of your question, but is
included for your information.

The cther altzrnative, intradepacrtmental transfer of funds
pursuant to 30 M.R.S.A. § 252, nay not »he used bzscause such transiecurs
are euthorizaed only between specific line appropriations within th
same department or agency. The Superior Court and the Jail (Suppor
of Prisonerg) are designated as separate and distinct departments for
county bhudget purvoses,

The forecast surplus in the Superior Court account cannot bz
used to restore the contingent account at this time, nor can it be
vsed for direct transfer to the Jail account., Since these are the
two mechanisms made available to the county comrimnissionsrs by statute
to overspend an individual line item, it follbws that the forecast
surplus may not be used for the Jail account,

Sincerely

~d

JOSEPH B, BRENIIAN
Attorney General

Representative Theodore ¥. wWin
Represantative Richard J, Cg rey
K eb
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Ricitann S, COHEN
MarTIN LLWILK

DEPUTY ATTORNELYS GENEQAL

Josyvat ELBReNNAN

ATYORNEY GENERAL

STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333

September 25, 1975

\

Honorable Lelghton Cooney
Box 246
Sabattus, Maine 04280

Dear Representative Cooney:

This is a reply to your recent letter posing several questions
concerning the Androscoggin County budget as approved by the 107th
Legislature. ’

First you ask whether: (1) the contingehcy account, and (2) the
2% tax overlay assessed against municipalities in Androscoggin County,

could be used in the event the Superior Court account runs short of funds.

The answer to your gquestion is in the affirmative, subject to certain
conditions. According to the provisions of 30 M.R.S.A. Sec. 252, the

contingent account may be used only for emergency purposes. What
COQSthuteS an emergency purpose lies within the sound discretion of
the County commissioners. The county commissioners would be validly

exercising their statutory discretion if they were to decide that the
continued funding of the courts constituted an emergency for which
the contingent account should be used.

As for the 2% tax overlay, the county commissioners are authorize

to add such an overlay to the tax required to be raised to fund the
expenses approved by the ILegislature. '

"k % % They may add such sum above the sum so
authorized, not exceeding 2% of said sum. As
a fractional division renders convenient and
certify that fact in the record of said
apportionment, and issue their warrant to

the assessors reguivng then forthwith to
assess the sum apportioned to their town or
place * * *_" 30 M.R.S.A. § 254,

There 1is little statutory direction zs to how these overlay funds are
o be expended. However, 1f 1003% ot the COJPLY tax were eventually

collected, the overlay revenue would be ravenue in excess of estimates

d

and could e vused in the following vear as surplus funds for the purposes
whic

h include restoration oif the
erlay funds could e used in-
or the courcs.

set forth in 30 M.R.S.A. Sec. 408,
contingent account. In that way, =
directly to provide additional fund:
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Your next question asks whether there are other statutory provisions
that would allow the county commissioners to remedy a legitimate budget
emergency, short of calling a special legislative session. The same
sort of inguiry has been made of this office by others, and we are
presently giving the matter our attention. As soon as the question is
resolved, we will advise you of our conclusion.

Your third question involves the Legislature's transfer of
$115, 000 from the "Building Construction Fund" in the Androscoggin
County Budget to an available credit status, to be utilized by the
county commissioners to meet county expenses for calendar year 1975.
You ask: "Was the Legislature within its power in so directing the
Commissioners, or do they (the Commissioners) have the sole power to
accumulate and spend such an amount independent of all other authorities?"
(Parenthesis mine) We are mindful of the fact that the District Attorney
has given legal advice to the county commissioners on that question.
We also realize that Maine statutes authorize the District Attorney to
appear for each county within his district, under the direction of the
County Commissioners in all actions and civil proceedings in which any
county is a party or is interested, or in which the official acts and

doings of said Commissioners are in question. 30 M.R.S.A. Sec. 501.
However, the nature of your question warrants response by this office
bsecause it calls for review of specific legislative action. The Legis-

lature has the constitutional power to direct the County Commissioners
to apply funds in a capital reserve account against the general budget
as occurred concerning Androscoggin County's budget, i.e., transfer of
the building fund balance to the "available credits" portion of the

budget. 30 M.R.S.A. Sec. 5201, subsecs. 1 and 2, read in conjunction
with 30 M.R.S.A. § 403, authorize a county to establish reserve accounts
for capital improvements. The language of 30 M.R.S.A. Sec. 5202 makes

vrovision for the administration of the capital improvement account.
Wwhile it is true that sec. 5202 specifies that an expenditure from any
reserve account may only be made for the specific purpose for which the
account was established, the Legislature retains at all times its
constitutional authority to act for the benefit of the people of the
State. Constitution of Maine, Art. IV, Part Third, Sec. 1. It is also
well established that the Legislature may direct appropriation of
county funds in such manner and amount as it deems best, so long as the
purpose is a public one and of special benefit to the county. Sawyer
. Gilmore (1912) 109 Me. 169. 1In the matter at hand, the Legislature
as acting within its constitutional and statutory authority when it
erve account be utilized as a credit
zgainst current service o es of the county. Resolves 1975, c. 15
=nd Androscoggin County budget as avproved by the Legislature.

.
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Next you ask whether: "Is it within the powers of the County
Commissioners on their own motion, to declare the purposes of the
‘Building Construction Funds' satisfied and therefor apply those funds
to the 1975-76 current services budget?" The nature of the question is
such that we feel, respectfully, the answer to the previous
question renders moot the need to answer this question.

In conclusion, you request what recourse is available to the
citizenry of Androscoggin County if the County Commissioners fail to
act within the mandate of the statutes concerning the legislatively
approved budget. "Recourse" depends upon the nature of the facts in
a specific case; and we respectfully reserve comment on that until
par ticular facts are known.

very truly yours,

/f}\r/‘l' («U! @\L,ﬁvt /7(\}
&éz&:\" W. BENOIT, JR/ _
Devuty Attorney General

JWwBJr:mfe
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